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Action Items:

D. Mosteller: (p.20) Provide the CAG with a hard copy and CD of the Lot 1-2 Revised Risk Assessment Report, the Lot 3 Revised Risk Assessment Report, and the Human Health Risk Assessment report. (p.22) Send the Pore Water sample analysis/report to the RSSA CAG and its consultants (ie., Dorinda Shipman.) (p.25) Contact Zeneca consultant doing the radiological historical assessment, and get the expected delivery date of the report.  Notify this consultant that the RSSA CAG would like to have a presentation given on this report at the soonest available CAG meeting following the release of the report to DTSC. (p.26) Check on status of Dr. Robert Meyer’s response on the methods that were used for the radiological analysis: send his writeup to the CAG. 
DTSC: (p.35) Answer Dr. Esposito’s question of “is there any published medical or scientific evidence demonstrating that DTSC's environmental remediation protocols, capping, chemical and biological treatment of groundwater, and permitting maximum containment levels of chemicals, metals and radiological contaminants, and restrictions upon land and water use, covenants and deed restrictions that have been shown to be protective of human health by actual surveys in the out‑years following these remediation protocols?” (p.24) Determine if a statement was made that RFS could not move employees into the Forest Products building until it had been fully characterized.

Bylaws Committee: (p.39) review bylaws and MOA and suggest any changes to bylaws that would remove any conflicts between the two.  Also review if any additional language needs to be added to the bylaws to clarify the extent of actions/decisions that can be taken/made by the CAG Executive Committee in between CAG meetings.    
Proceedings:

MR. ROBINSON:  To get the meeting started, we have some news on Ethel Dotson.  She is not doing well.  That is why Whitney is not here today.  So if you believe in prayer… and be sure to send her best wishes as well.  But Whitney is not going to be here.  So I will chair.  The handouts just arrived with Carolyn.  Okay.  Well, I am going to keep talking here.  We're having a temporary facilitator here, Kay Wallis, who agreed to join us for September on a temporary basis.  Kay is also one of the candidates for the permanent position which we will make an announcement for at the next meeting.  And with that, Kay, would you take a minute or two to introduce yourself? 

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you, Mr. Robinson.  As I was introduced, my name is Kay Wallis, and I am very pleased to be the temporary facilitator for this September meeting of the CAG.  I will give you a few very quick sentences about my background.  I have over 20 years past experience as a communications and educational specialist.  For the last 11 years I have been on staff at the Department of Medicine at UCSF as a health educator, and as a consultant I have also done meeting facilitation and strategic planning with organizations such as the California Department of Public Health, the Pacific AIDS Education and Training Center and the American Thoracic Society.  

So I am very pleased to facilitate this meeting, and I hope to stick very clearly to the Latin root of the word "facilitator," facile, to make easier.  I will be focused on two things in particular in facilitating this meeting.  The first is keeping the meeting on time, which I have failed at miserably so far, and the second is to keep the meeting on track.  And toward that we have an important tool at our disposal, which is the agenda.  

So please turn your attention to the agenda which is now being distributed for those who don't have one, and I believe there are copies in the back as well.  After these opening activities, we'll move right into a presentation by Drs. Wendel Brunner and Rick Kreutzer and the draft PHA for the Richmond Field Station.  That will be followed by a Q‑and‑A session, and that will include questions from the CAG and from the audience as well.  

We'll talk in a few minutes about the process for that.  We will have a very short break following that Q‑and‑A session, and then we will go right to the update from Cherokee/Simeon Ventures on the Zeneca/Stauffer site and followed by the DTSC update.  Following those two presentations there will be a joint question section, again, taking questions from the CAG and from the audience as well.  Following that we will have a Toxics Committee update with a special report on Lot Three.  There will be a very brief item following that approving the hiring of the radiological consultant and then a very brief item about deferring the hiring and firing of MOA consultants.  

We'll have an all too short session for public comment and then some wrap‑up activities at the very end.  It shouldn't take more than a minute or two.  As you can see, this is an ambitious and full agenda.  So as such, I wanted to review a few process points that will help us get through it.  I wanted to call your attention to some question slips that have been prepared.  They are there for preparing your questions as you listen to a presenter, preparing the questions for that person as they occur to you.  They will be available to both CAG and the audience members.  These serve two purposes.  If you ask your question it is a nice way to have this in front of you to have organized your thoughts and help you do it in the most efficient way.  The second way that it is helpful is that if we are unable to get to all of the questions that come up for a particular presenter, then we'll be able to have captured your question and you can submit it to me.  And I will be sure that the Executive Committee receives it and then can get it answered in some way, either referring it to the speaker or the committee in question, whatever it is.  So it is a great way to be able to hold on to the unanswered questions and get those addressed.  So these will be distributed in a couple of minutes.  

We anticipate we may not have time to address every question or comment that wants to be made.  And to accommodate as many people as possible the Executive Committee has recommended that we ask anyone who is bringing up a question or a comment to limit themselves to about a minute and a half.  And that is both CAG and audience members.  So I have a little timer to help us with that.  

Let's say your question or comment or issue cannot be adequately addressed in the minute and a half or so time frame.  Well, again, if it is a question, we have the green slips that we can fall back on for future follow‑up.  Or if it is an issue that you would like the CAG to follow up on in a different way, we have the action list that I am going to be keeping.  So if we are unable to accommodate it within the agenda either because of time constraints or because it is just not completely on topic with what we are doing, we can record it here.  It will then go to the Executive Committee for some kind of follow‑up assignment.  

Perhaps it is an item or a question that needs to be referred to the Toxics Committee or to the Bylaws Committee, or perhaps it is something that the Executive Committee needs to consider to put on next month's agenda.  

So these will all be recorded here.  And in the future the disposition of the items will be decided.  So we talked in terms of process points, about using the question slips, we have talked about keeping the comments or questions to a minute and a half, and we have talked about items that can't be addressed in our limited time here in the action list.  

There are only two more quick points I want to make before we go into our first presentation, and that is the Executive Committee has suspended the use of the yellow cards that you have used in previous meetings.  So I do want to call your attention or to recall your attention to the point of order amendment that was passed at the August meeting.  And this was, again, a method that was devised so that the chair or anyone on the CAG can, if something is going off track, if something is off the point, anyone can bring that up.  And so the point of order is a way for any CAG member to bring it to the group's attention that something is off track.  And then the group can decide ‑‑ the chair or the group can decide how we are going to proceed from there.  So I just wanted to bring that up as a relatively new process.  All right.  I think it is time to go to our first agenda item, and that is a presentation by Dr. Rick Kreutzer and Dr. Wendel Brunner on the draft PHA.

DR. KREUTZER:  Good evening.  We'll talk about the Draft Public Health Assessment we have now released for public comment.  The public comment period is open until September 24th, so we look forward to getting any and all comments that you would have.  And we will try to address every one of them as we get them, or I should say when we get them after the period of comment has closed.  

So it was a little bit over two years ago when, together with the Contra Costa Health Department, we submitted a Provisional Health Statement about the safety and/or risk of two sites, the Richmond Field Station which we are talking about more tonight and the Zeneca properties which we are still working on a draft health assessment that will be put out hopefully within about six months to a year.  But at that time, two years ago, there was a lot of concern based upon, I think, dissatisfaction with the lead agency as the Water Resources Board and then just concerns about the procedures and activities that were going on at the sites, particularly at Zeneca.  

And so we were asked to provide the provisional health statement that really addressed any current and/or near future exposure that might be of concern to people in the community or workers around those sites.  And at that time we had indicated that from the best of our ability to construct any sorts of exposure scenarios, that we did not at that time see any evidence for an exposure that warranted some immediate change in behavior.  And we said that over the ensuing time if we did see additional information that would change that picture that we would be reporting back to people immediately.  

At that time the CAG hadn't yet formed, but it has become a mechanism for us to talk about any new findings in a more immediate way.  Since the two years ago, my colleagues, in what is for my group of the Environmental Health Investigations Branch in the Department of Public Health, have continued to review any and all data about both sites.  And again, tonight, we are going to talk about their review of the Richmond Field Station data.  

Before I go on with a little bit of that process, I want to introduce my colleagues, because this is the kind of work that requires a team.  You can't do it alone.  It is truly multidisciplinary, much too complex and out of the comfort zone of any one discipline.  So Marilyn Underwood runs the section that does this.  She is in our site assessment section.  Tracy Barreau is one of our site assessors and does a lot of work in crunching all of this data, and Ruby Orozco is one of our participation consultants for staff.  And she helps us work with the CAG and with other community groups to hopefully share the information as completely as possible.  

So what's the process behind the public health assessment?  I have mentioned there is a lot of effort to gather any and all data about the site.  And then based upon that data, it could be past practices.  It could be what is known about current practices.  There is an effort to try to assess what chemicals have been on that site associated with any of those practices and then an effort to get a sense of the general levels of those chemicals, because, unfortunately, we know that there are chemicals in the soil of many places around the Bay Area and anywhere in this country.  

And so if these chemicals do not exceed a certain threshold, in fact, we don't look at them any further.  But for those chemicals that exceed kind of a screening threshold, we call those chemicals of concern.  And we continue to look at those more thoroughly.  And then our goal is to look to see if there are what we call pathways of exposure to people.  

And so you can imagine a pathway requires having a source for the chemical, a means for that chemical to leave the source and get to a human population, and then a route by which that chemical can get into the body.  That could be by breathing it in, swallowing it, from eating or absorbing it through your skin.  And then thereafter if we have seen the evidence for a completed pathway, we then try to figure out just how much of the chemical could have been involved in that pathway and what kind of risk would be associated with that exposure.  So each of these steps requires some thought about it.  

The basic premise behind our work is to try to protect public health.  And so there will often be disagreement amongst scientists about what the best approach is.  But we try to make assumptions in our process that will be as protective of human health as we possibly can be.  And so when we talk about some of our findings and suggest that there are significant pathways of exposure, I also want you to then, as you hear that, be thinking about the assumptions that we made in determining that that pathway was significant because in bringing it out as a significant pathway, not wanting to raise alarm ‑‑ because in most cases there isn't reason for alarm ‑‑ but there is reason for thoughtful and careful cleanup to avoid any ongoing exposure.  

And that is really the main thrust of our effort.  We want to be sure people don't get exposed to anything more than is absolutely necessary and that that period of exposure is reduced to as short of a time as possible.  So a couple of the assumptions that we have made that you will hear more about as Dr. Brunner tells you about the results.  We assume that for every chemical of concern that the level throughout the property is equal to the highest value that we found at any measured site.  So we have tried to assume the highest possible exposure.  And then for some of these activities that you will hear about, work in the marsh, digging on the site of the Field Station, we have tried to assume a fairly long duration.  We have said, for kids, I think it is 20 or 30 years, for workers, 20 or 30 years, and about 100 hours a year of exposure in these activities.  

And so, again, we are hoping, we are assuming that we have made estimates of activity duration that far exceed what anybody really would have done.  And then we try to assume that the potential exposure they had was at the highest level that was found anywhere on the site.  But that's what they had no matter where they were on the site.  So in doing that we hope and we think that we serve the public as well as we possibly could.  

And so with that, the only other thing I will say is that the provisional health statement, again, was for current and near future exposure.  The public health assessment that you have an opportunity to review is for past exposure, current exposure, and future exposure.  And unfortunately, any past exposure that we might be talking about is done, has happened, and there is nothing we are going to be able to do to undo it.  But we are definitely committed to discovering any current exposure in making sure that that is controlled as much as possible and hopefully is done so that it is of no significant risk whatsoever to anybody.  So, anyway, with that I will pass it on to Dr. Brunner.  And then thereafter we will be happy to answer any of your questions.  So thanks very much.

DR. BRUNNER:  Thank you, Rick.  I want to comment on the findings and the results.  We prepared ‑‑ the actual report is almost 100 pages, including the appendices and the maps.  So we prepared the two‑page summary of this report.  This was directed really at the employees of the Richmond Field Station, there are a large number of employees there, and we wanted to have something that people could look at and would be a summary.  

A two‑page summary does not include everything included in the 100‑page report.  I want to acknowledge that up front.  We have tried to put together a few of the key points.  I think one of the things ‑‑  in fact, our first recommendation acknowledges that fact, that in our view this site is not completely and adequately characterized at this point, so that there are uncertainties about what was on the site.  

One of the reasons we were very conservative in the exposure ‑‑ that is, we applied a precautionary principle in looking at how to assess the health impacts in this is because there are some uncertainties in the whole situation.  There are uncertainties due to the fact that the site is not completely characterized.  There is a whole host of uncertainties of things that aren't known.  So we wanted to leave a wide margin and adequate leeway so we could make some fairly definitive statements based on some very conservative approaches.  I just wanted to mention that.  Those are kind of two things we have to keep in mind.  

Two pages for a 100‑page report.  The results of our review, as you can see in the report, was the first thing, is we wanted to assure you, the people working in the Richmond Field Station, that are walking on the grounds, participating on the grounds was not a threat to people's health from possible contaminants and exposure in the soil.  We also wanted to assure the public that use of the Bay Trail is not a threat to themselves, the children in general using the Bay Trail ‑‑ that that is really contingent on the fact that as remediation goes on there is adequate control of dust and so on, that that is monitored and dust mitigation measures are kept in place.  But assuming that's the way it's been happening in the last year or so, that we feel quite confident about making that statement.  

Also we wanted to sort of quantify that on one level about the possibility of elevated levels of naturally‑occurring radionuclides.  I kept saying radionucleotides.  That's from a different career in my life ‑‑ radionuclides are being investigated.  There is some legitimate concern that the phosphate fertilizer process that went on for years and years and years is known to concentrate naturally‑occurring radioactive material, that that has really not been adequately investigated yet at the Zeneca site, and depending upon further investigation there that would be something that would have to be looked at for possible migration of water containing these materials into the marsh that has already by remediated. 

What we told the people at the Richmond Field Station is that in our view, it looks like that should be handled in sort of a step‑wise fashion.  We should look and see what the situation here is on the Zeneca site and see if there is a problem on the Zeneca site before spending a lot of time looking to see if the potential problem migrated.  And that is underway.  

There were also concerns about the indoor air quality for people working at the Richmond Field Station.  There have been some measurements of the indoor air quality.  Based on those measurements, we say very carefully here, there is no evidence that indoor air quality at the Richmond Field Station poses any health hazard.  But, you know, as Rumsfield says, "Absence of evidence is not evidence of absence."  Okay.  We pointed out that for at least formaldehyde and arsenic, specifically, that there should be additional sampling and perhaps some consideration about some other additional indoor‑outdoor air quality sampling.

But based on the sampling that is currently available, there is no evidence there are any problems with the indoor‑outdoor air quality.  So that kind of deals with the present and hopefully the future exposures.  And we also looked into past exposures.  The Health Department looked into past exposures.  And one part of that is that the past is past.  But I think that it is important to look in the past and see what sort of lessons we can learn from it as we move into the future.  

There are two possible past exposures of concern.  One is for looking at workers in the Richmond Field Station area who may have dug into the dirt that is contaminated.  And as Rick pointed out, the assumptions were that you had a worker digging in the most contaminated sites that have been found, exclusively, for two hours a day, 100 days a year for 23 years.  That was the kind of exposure we were looking at.  That was an unrealistic exposure and deliberately so.  And based on that kind of exposure, it would be ‑‑ you could expect that there may be some health impacts such as immune effects, skin effects, kidney issues, GI symptoms, that these could be possible, based on that kind of exposure.  The increased risk of developing cancer for a worker from a 30‑year exposure is identified here as low.  Actually, the calculation is based on the scenario where I think 5 in 10,000, 7 in 10,000, something of that order, which is not a kind of regulatory level that we would tolerate, but this is a theoretical highest past exposure.  It is not a kind of exposure we would tolerate occurring in the future, but I think we could still legitimately reassure someone who had dug for two hours a day, 100 days a year, 23 years, in the most contaminated areas, that still compared to their lifetime risk of cancer of 2,500 in 10,000, an additional five or ten in the 2000 risk is still relatively low, and we would not expect anyone to get cancer from this kind of exposure.  So we want to qualify it in that sort of way.  

Nonetheless, this is not the kind of exposure to cancer risk we would tolerate for a community.  The most contaminated areas that have been identified so far have been fenced off.  And, in fact, with reasonable precautions the exposure to workers in that area, even people that have to dig and so on would be quite minimal.  And the current workers would be quite safe with reasonable precautions.  The second potential area of past concern is kids who may have been playing in the marsh.  And, again, we used really excessive exposure assumptions.  We are talking about a kid who played for over 2000 hours in the marsh spread over a period of ten years.  It's 200 hours a year.  You know, you go there every week and you spend, what, four hours playing in the marsh, summer, winter, every weekend and so on.  

So this is ‑‑ I don't think any kid had that kind of exposure, but, again, that is kind of conservative, and based on that sort of exposure, it is unlikely that any child or teenager who had that kind of exposure would have non‑cancer effects.  But if they did it could be skin effects, kidney effects, possible neurodevelopmental effects, GI symptoms and immune defects are possible but not likely even under that kind of exposure.  

And the risk for developing cancer is estimated to be quite low.  It is parts in 100,000, I think, rather than parts in 10,000 for this.  Based on this assessment, we continue with the recommendations ‑‑ these were recommendations that were basically directed at the University for the University Field Station, but some of them are more widely applicable and that the first one is that although some information is available more should be collected to understand the extent of the contamination.  In other words, the site is not yet completely and adequately characterized.  That needs to happen.  

We are recommending some additional testing of the indoor air for formaldehyde and arsenic in some of the buildings.  At a minimum there could be some consideration of other indoor air testing.  Looking at the possibility of elevated naturally‑occurring radioactive materials from the phosphate refining, and if these are found on the Zeneca site there should be further investigation to see if any of that migrated into the marshes.  And obviously as the remediation goes on there needs to continue to be adequate and appropriate dust mitigation measures in place at the Richmond Field Station.  And we also believe the community and everyone else needs to be kept up to date about the information on this site.  And workers involved with handling or digging in potentially contaminated areas need appropriate training and equipment.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you, Dr. Brunner.  Before I open it up to the question‑and‑answer period I will ask our chair to address a request that came from the audience. 

MR. ROBINSON:  I have a question first.  I think I can get along without the mike.  There has been a request by a representative of U.C. Berkeley, Dr. Mark Freiberg.  I have one question before I rule on that with Dr. Kreutzer and Dr. Brunner.  Is what Dr. Freiberg wants presented a key element of your presentation?  

DR. KREUTZER:  It is not a key element of the presentation.  I have no objection to his comments, however. 

DR. BRUNNER:  As I understand it, he wanted to address some of the actions taken in response to these recommendations.  You know, they called us and asked us, and we said we have no problems with that at all, but we don't make the agenda for the CAG.

MR. ROBINSON:  And that is a key element of what I am going to talk about for the agenda.  When we agendize elements it is in a participatory nature.  And UC recently sent us correspondence stating that they were going to bypass the CAG and deal directly with DTSC.  And for that reason I would rather not give them agenda time.  And I think that is defined in the CAG as well.  

I'll open it up to discuss, but I would rather leave it to a minute and a half which is the same as the public and make it the same.

MS. WALLIS:  We have 20 minutes allocated for this question‑and‑answer period.  So we are going to start by taking questions from the CAG and then about midway through I will open it up to the larger audience.  If you have written down questions on the green slip or if you need a green slip they are right up here at the front.  If you have written down your question, please hold onto it for the time we open the questions up.  I see the first hand from Dr. Esposito.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I have a comment which I hope will be useful.  My concern is that the Public Health Assessment dwells in the area of chemistries that went on in the companies that were present on the site before the site was purchased in 1951 by the University.  And since that time, surely there has been an enormous amount of chemicals purchased, radionuclides purchased for research.  And I think it would be useful for us to have a complete inventory of the amounts of chemicals that were used by the University during the time of purchase rather than tying all of our concerns about chemicals and radionuclides to the activities of companies that were on the site such as Zeneca and others.  That's one concern.  

The other is that I think that the precautionary principles should include the notion that we are not all uniformly susceptible to these agents that are left on site and that the one in a million precautionary or one in 100,000 or one in 10,000 ignores the fact that we are enormously different from one another in our ability to deal with all kinds of insults, genetic and organic.  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Any response from the speakers, or should we go to the next comment or question?  I saw a hand.  Mr. Alcaraz. 

MR. ALCARAZ:  First of all, Dr. Brunner, do you work for a public ‑‑ DTSC ‑‑ that is the public. 

DR. BRUNNER:  I work for the Contra Costa Health Services Department.  I am the public health director for the County.  I work for the County government.  I don't work for DTSC. 

MR. ALCARAZ:  So you work for the people? 

DR. BRUNNER:  Hopefully.

MR. ALCARAZ:  How long was the survey, the one you just ‑‑ the one I just got?  Was that two years' worth of work? 

DR. BRUNNER:  You know, I would ask my colleagues in the State Department of Public Health who also work for the public to answer more details about how this was done.  They did most of the work on this.  I prepared with their assistance, actually, but prepared the summary and did the final editing and take responsibility for that.  But I would direct those kinds of questions to how long this took to them.  I know this has been ‑‑ we have been working on this for over two years.  We came out first with the preliminary quick and dirty one, and this is a more elaborate one.  

MR. ALCARAZ:  I represent the retirees of the Richmond Field Station.  I go back 35 years.  During that period, I would say the people that I have contacted, the ones that are alive, I would say six out of ten have died from cancer or leukemia.  My brother has what they call MDS, melioidosis.  It is what they call leukemia, beginning leukemia.  It will never graduate to the full leukemia, but he will die from beginning leukemia.  And every one of the people that I have interviewed and the people that I talked to, the ones that are alive, they have all suffered some sort of like asthma, anything like that.  

Myself, when I was there I had infectious prostatitis the whole time I was there.  It never went into cancer but it seemed like all the doctors in the world come up to you and said, "It looks like cancer, Rick."  I was a nervous wreck.  

MS. WALLIS:  In the interest of time, is there a final question or a final comment you would like to wrap up?

MR. ALCARAZ:  One other thing about the buildings that I worked in, those buildings ‑‑ in those buildings had recycled air.  Since then it has been changed.  Right now I know that they are not ‑‑ they are taking in fresh air intake.  When I was there they were repeating the same air in the building over and over again, which, you know, is Legionnaire's disease.  But what I am trying to explain to you is that there is no way that you can go back two years and research when you need to go back 35 years and start there.

DR. BRUNNER:  Absolutely.  And I want to use this as an opportunity to acknowledge another one of the weaknesses in this way.  We look at some kinds of exposure that went on in the past or what could have gone in the past and drew some conclusions about this.  In no way are we identifying all of the exposures to people that worked at these sites in the '40s and the '50s and the '60s and later may have been exposed to.  That was at a time when, you know, even the relatively lax OSHA standards have now ‑‑ didn't even exist.  Protections for workers were much, much less.  

I am not ‑‑ I don't think we want to use this in any way to say that workers in the past in any of these industries were not inappropriately and perhaps quite highly exposed. 

MR. ALCARAZ:  What I am trying to say I don't suggest my child eat on the ground at the Richmond Field Station is the way I feel.

DR. KREUTZER:  I just wanted to indicate that I talked a little bit in the beginning about the process for doing health assessments.  And a really important part of that process for us is to go out and try to talk with as many people who are in the affected community as possible.  This would be workers and retired workers, as many of those people as we can, because we really believe strongly that experience speaks as much and as loudly as just data.  And so we really do try to get that whole picture when we are conducting a health assessment.  And sometimes, then, we try to look at all of those things together, what does the data show?  What can we put together from this idea of the exposure pathway?  And we try as hard as we can to see if we can explain those illnesses that people have been experiencing on the basis of the contamination that we know about and, you know, what we can put together.  

Sometimes we are able to make that connection clearly.  Other times we are left unable to do that and we just have to admit that we can't.

MS. WALLIS:  I saw two more hands, Ms. Abbott to be followed by Ms. Padgett.

MS. ABBOTT:  I haven't read this, by any means, since I just got it, but I was looking at the recommendations and my ‑‑ which are on Page 48.  And the first recommendation recommends that future soil‑disturbing dust‑generating activities be monitored for air quality along the perimeter of the site to ensure safe air quality for workers, residents, and other people in the area.  This is a large site with the air quality, like, in the middle or interior.  I mean, why just the perimeter?  That is one question.  I have two more.  

The second one, again, is in Recommendation Two, where it is recommended that UC conduct additional characterization of on‑site groundwater at the east and northeast side of the RFS to better understand the potential for vapor intrusion to be affecting indoor air in buildings in that area.  Are there specific buildings there is a concern about, and if so, could we have that named?  My third question is totally separate.  So if you want to go with those... 

DR. BRUNNER:  Well, one of things in terms of additional characterization of groundwater, that is part ‑‑ I mean, this site, in our view, is not adequately characterized.  It needs to be characterized.  Okay.  There would be some concern if there was contamination in groundwater.  There could be vapor intrusion of the buildings and so on.  To some extent you can get at that quickly and for the short‑term by indoor air quality measurements.  So it is okay indoor air right now.  It is okay right now.  And then you characterize the site and develop a cleanup plan.  So that is consistent with ‑‑ I mean, that is our basic recommendation.  You have got to characterize the site properly.

MS. ABBOTT:  That was not my question.  

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  If I could elaborate on that.  Specifically that side of the site, we know there are high levels in the groundwater close to the boundaries.  And so that is an area of concern.  The greatest concern is to make sure that the contamination has not migrated in that area.   

DR. KREUTZER:  Which buildings? 

MS. ABBOTT:  Along that ground.  

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  And thank you for the point about the dust.  (Inaudible).  

DR. KREUTZER:  The suggestion you made about monitoring the interior as well as at the perimeter, we are agreeing probably is important to look into.

MS. ABBOTT:  Great.

MS. WALLIS:  We have a question from Ms. Padgett and Mr. Munoz, and then I am going to open it up to the public ‑‑ okay.  Mr. Blum, and then we'll try to have a few questions from the audience in the few minutes that remain.  Ms. Padgett?

MS. PADGETT:  I have a list.  I am just going to go right down them.  And I don't expect you will be able to address them all, but we will put them in writing to you a little bit later.  We didn't hear ‑‑ we don't think enough emphasis is on the need for some kind of statement about the impact of multiple chemicals and low‑level exposures to chemicals over a long period of time and the combination of both of those, both multiple chemicals and low‑level exposures.  

We are concerned about employees being moved into the Forest Products Lab before we have a full assessment of the VOC impact under ground to that building, and employees have been moved in or are being moved in.  And it seems as if that should be addressed fairly quickly.  

At the Field Station presentation we heard about employees who have gardens.  They actually plant gardens out there, as in vegetable garden.  And you did tell them clearly you didn't recommend them doing that.  Maybe some kind of statement needs to be given to the employees about "do no more gardening."  

The emphasis on the radionuclides seems to be on the phosphate fertilizer leftovers.  However, we have a number of other issues relating to the radionuclides.  One of them is an investigation of the Bulb, and another is the processing of uranium.  And we're concerned about, still, the lack of signs, the employees that don't have maps, and finally, to close it up, will there be an update of this report after further characterization?  Because we all agree the characterization is incomplete.

MS. WALLIS:  You said you will be submitting these questions in writing to the speakers.  So do you want to address them now or move on to the next question?

DR. KREUTZER:  Probably the most important is this last question which the full document probably won't be updated, but we would have an addenda that would then be submitted to the public and, you know, hopefully indicating these new pieces of information.

MR. MUNOZ:  One of my main concerns, as Sherry already pointed out, is that the studies focus on individual chemicals, but what about when you have exposures to so many of them, and also what about people that might have already compromised immune systems because of their illnesses, elderly people and so on, because when you are talking about a child, you are not talking about just about a child that is 100 percent normal.  You might have kids that have other diseases.  And so I would like to see more information about that to be clear that it does cover everyone that potentially could be in that site.

MS. WALLIS:  So we'll take a question from Mr. Blum and then I will come to the audience.

MR. BLUM:  Okay.  I know the report is mostly looking forward.  I have a question about looking backward.  The levels of risk for exposure here are based on data from when, and the other side of this question, when that data was actually gathered, when the characterizations occurred.  And the other part is when you calculate a 30‑year exposure, people who were actually at the site previously, if your exposures are based on current levels from current testing, presumably levels were very different when the chemicals were actually there, and is there any calculation to try and approach what those exposures might have actually been in reality.

DR. BRUNNER:  Let me try that and then turn it over.  Okay.  But I do want to make the point, at least my understanding of this is that we cannot say that people who worked at Stauffer Chemicals in the '40s, '50, '60s '70s, whenever, were not exposed to things that were much worse than what we are talking about here.  This is based on, you know, soil samples.  And it is talking about people digging in soil contaminated as it is now.  It is not talking about people working with chemicals, improperly protected and exposed in the workplace and so on.  So that I don't think that this report should be in any way used to say, "Oh, everything was fine at Stauffer for the last 30 years."

DR. KREUTZER:  I would just like to ask my colleagues to kind of give you a sense of the amount of information that was looked at and roughly what the time periods were that it applied to.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  We looked at all of the remedial investigations that were conducted at the site over the years that ‑‑ it is all referenced from the '90s up until recent.  That's all the data that we looked at to evaluate.  So if something was collected early, some soil values that were collected perhaps in 1990, that we were ‑‑ you know, we would use that data as well as that data that had been removed.  So we try to understand the past exposure based on all of the data that is available from this historic up to the present.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  But, you know, there are certainly some chemicals that are known to migrate maybe to groundwater but other chemicals that don't migrate, especially in the soil and such.  So we don't expect some of these chemicals to go away just because time passes, I guess.  So to the extent that certainly ‑‑ and maybe we can talk about more of that in the document, but some chemicals just don't migrate much.  And so your concentrations that you are seeing now would not be thought to be that much different than, say, 20 or 30 years ago.

MS. WALLIS:  So we'll take ‑‑ I think we have time for about three questions from the audience.  I see a hand here and here and here.  Please remember that if we don't have time to get all of the questions, do submit those green slips.  And I think I said here first.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I was misled by your statement regarding possible past exposures, and perhaps other people will also be mislead.  When Mr. Alcaraz made his statement, I just ‑‑ my bottom fell out.  Okay.  I think when you present this report on Page 2 you talk about possible past exposures, okay.  I think there needs to be an absolutely clear statement made below that explaining some of the things that you have said here in very concise and clear language.  

DR. BRUNNER:  I agree with you.  And we put this together with really the initial staff that were working there now and hadn't been working at Stauffer 30 years ago.  And I think that point is well taken.

MS. WALLIS:  Another question?  

MR. WEINER:  Hi.  I want to thank you.  It is a great effort that all of you made it, and I really want to thank you very much for doing so.  One of the things you conclude is there is inadequate data.  You start out by saying the site is not fully characterized in some areas.  You say there is inadequate data to determine the risk.  My question is in what way can your organizations work with DTSC to assure there is full characterization of the site so we can treat what you have done as a draft and, after full characterization of the site, get a better idea of what the risks really are.  And I know that there is also some concern about especially dust in the areas that people are walking through where there was a great deal of arsenic.  And there was an emergency removal because ‑‑ and I know that you said there isn't a hazard of walking around.  So I thought that there might be some concern about that.  That is my second issue.  The first issue I would like to hear the most about.  

DR. KREUTZER:  I think we do communicate with DTSC fairly regularly.  And we also see the work with the CAG as another way to just maintain, hopefully, a very powerful and effective loop of communication so that if things are kept fairly open, then there is less risk of things falling through the cracks.  And so, you know, we expect that DTSC will be making decisions to get this site characterization completed.  We never know exactly how long it is going to take, but we are expecting that most of the things recommended in that health assessment will actually take place sooner or later.  

MR. WEINER:  I know that UC may be here tonight, but they have generally decided not to attend CAG meetings and have said that the violations that DTSC said they had were just paperwork, even though it was illegal treatment and disposal.  So I am just concerned that without a regulatory requirement that they fully characterize the site, that that won't happen.  And sometimes when reports like yours come out, the person who has got the site can just say, "Uh‑huh," and then nothing happens.  So I am just hoping that there will be follow up.

DR. KREUTZER:  One thing that I would just like to remind you again is it was with respect to the assumptions issues.  Again, we assume that the place on the site where we measured the highest level now represents the levels all across the site.  So we still need further characterization.  But what one is waiting to see, and I think there is lower likelihood of it happening, is that as we look to other places where we had less expectation for high levels than we did in the places that we first looked, that we are going to find a level that exceeds the highest level that we had that will therefore now set the bar of exposure in our models at a new high level.  You know, it could happen, and that's why we still want to see it characterized, but by making the assumption that we did, I think we are in some way decreasing the importance of that lack of site characterization.  I am not trying to say we don't want it, but by making our assumptions we are trying to take care of some of those limitations.  

So, you know, if we find something that is even higher than the highest level we ever found before then everything gets ratcheted up and we recalculated the models.  But I hope that in some way that is reassuring.  I still agree that more site characterization is necessary.

MS. WALLIS:  There are copies of the full draft PHA at the back, and there is also a sign up sheet for those who want the copy mailed to them.  So I think I pointed to... 

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I think that the questions having to do with the employees were not Stauffer employees but were Richmond Field Station employees.  I just thought it was important to clarify, that I have two questions.  Why did you not cite it as an area of concern for the improper toxics cleanup under the jurisdiction of the Water Board?  Many employees complained to the University at the time.  Many people got sick.  There are varieties of different problems.  And I know some of them have reported to the Public Health Representatives.  It was severe enough that UC allowed some employees to go home.  

So that is one question.  The other one is that at least one of the buildings has a strong odor permeating where people, including myself, have had headaches even after an exposure of 20 to 30 minutes.  And it seems to me and to the Unions who represent people of Richmond Field Station that all of the buildings really should be tested for formaldehyde and any other chemicals that have been found in any of the sites of the buildings.  I understand that you can take a test for formaldehyde, and it is low in one building but maybe there is arsenic, so then the result comes out and says it is safe because it is low for formaldehyde, but arsenic wasn't tested.  So we don't hear about that.  So we think that all of the buildings should be tested as long as people are working there.  And we have a continuing concern about the Forest Products Building because we know people have gotten very ill there.  And there have been tests about arsenic, which is why the University recently found that a piece of property not previously characterized as dangerous with arsenic is now way off the charts.  

So there may be other off‑the‑chart areas of things that have not yet been characterized.  So if you would comment on the building, testing and on the area of concern during the Water Board.  

DR. KREUTZER:  Actually, I would like to defer to my colleagues.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I will just say that we did have ‑‑ you know, Sherry was there and some other folks might have been there at a meeting at the UC Field Station with quite a bit of workers.  We have at a minimum indicated we would like to see more arsenic and formaldehyde testing.  They did indicate that at that time she would be willing to sit down with us and figure out what we would like to receive in the indoor testing.  I hope that comes about and the idea of not just testing for one chemical but trying to look at a suite of chemicals, I think that is a good suggestion.  

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Why did the report not deal with the Water Board time frame?

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  First I heard you say, you know, could we say that they were doing things improperly.  

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I said that I mean as an area of concern, that people ‑‑ I mean, Wendel mentioned there were people that did not work there in the last 30 years.  There are people that have been there for 20 or 30 years and some not as long.  But many of them, the majority, were there four years ago, I believe.   

DR. BRUNNER:  There is a large section of the report that addresses the complaints that employees at RFS had and goes through the toxicology of the different chemicals and draws conclusions to that.  And we believe we didn't go in that in summary, but I am sure that I have seen it.   

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  That's what we ended up doing in that place because we didn't have data to be able to evaluate those.  We did end up trying to summarize the concerns that we heard from people from those times.  And that is, unfortunately, about the best as we can do because we don't have 90 days to evaluate the exposures that occurred at that time.

MS. WALLIS:  We need to close the Q‑and‑A period for the interest of time.  Two things.  If you have a question written down on your question slip, either on the CAG or in the audience that wasn't addressed, please submit them to me.  We are going into the break right now, and I will make sure that the Executive Committee gets them directed for follow‑up with the appropriate responders.  I have also been asked by a member of the audience to announce that public comment period for the draft period PHA ends September 24th.  Keep that date in mind.  Mr. Chair?  

MR. ROBINSON:  One thing is could we get a URL address on the board?  Great.  So anyone who is interested can access that online.  

MS. WALLIS:  Please give those slips to me for outstanding questions, and we are taking a five‑minute break.  Please help yourself to refreshments.  Bathrooms are right through that door and around the corner.  

(Recess.) 

MS. WALLIS:  Our break has concluded.  We will move directly on to our next item, which is the Cherokee‑Simeon Ventures update on the site.  And I will turn it over to Doug Mosteller. 

MS. WALLIS:   Mr. Mosteller, we have allocated 15 minutes.  Hi.  Thank you.

MR. MOSTELLER:  Hi.  I'm Doug Mosteller with Cherokee‑Simeon Ventures.  And I don't know where to stand because I want to actually use this map to point out certain areas.  So I think I will go over here, but I don't want to tweak anybody's neck.  First of all, just I want to give you an update as to where we are on a number of fronts with respect to our investigation characterization of what's known as the former Zeneca property.  We refer to it also as Campus Bay.  That would be this area here.  

First on the update is the East Stege Marsh right in here.  We are just continuing with our maintenance activities which we have been reporting for quite some time.  With respect to the temporary cap, which is this gray area outlined right here.  Right now, actually this week and next, we are going through some cap maintenance activities.  Really what that involves is weeding.  There are some weeds that are coming up, and we are just having a crew out there hand‑pulling some of those weeds. 

Next is an area referred to as the southeast parcel, and that is right here.  And this is an area that if you look closely on this map it ‑‑ it is actually separated from the rest of the property over here, and the only way to access this is to go over this bridge here and go through somebody else's property, and this is Union Pacific property, and then get on here.  We are working through some of those access issues right now with Union Pacific, and we really would have hoped we would have had permission to cross their land.  Now we don't have it yet.  We are really hoping to get it by the end of September. 

Once we do receive that permission we are going to mobilize our crews as quickly as possible, hopefully right away, to go out there and collect some samples.  That would be part of the work plan that has been submitted to DTSC and approved by DTSC.  Next is the lagoon investigation.  That is referring to these two areas up here.  That is referring to the upper lagoon, and this is referred to as the lower lagoon.  We did complete an investigation that was consistent with our plans submitted and approved by DTSC.  

One of the things, kind of an interesting thing associated with the lower lagoon here is really by the end of the summer there was no water left in there.  So we kept thinking we are going to need a boat.  Now we are going to need a shallow boat.  It ended up we didn't need a boat and we are able to access that area by mobilizing some crews on some plywood for stability reasons, and we were able to collect our samples per the work plan that was submitted and approved by DTSC.  Next is there is a pilot ‑‑ we have a number of pilot studies going on in the areas referred to as areas Lot 1 and Lot Two.  These pilot studies are for groundwater.  They are for volatile inorganic compounds in groundwater.  We initiated those pilot studies back in October, November of 2006.  We have collected some groundwater samples to see how well it is working.  We intend on submitting a report to DTSC in September regarding our findings.  

Next is an area up here.  This is approximate to an area that has been discussed a little bit tonight.  It is known as the polychlorinated biphenyl PCB volatile organic compound, VOC Removal Action Work Plan (RAW) area.  There are a lot of acronyms there, but it really comes down to an area here where the constituents that I just mentioned are in the soil.  And we have a work plan that is in to DTSC to essentially excavate the impacted soil and haul it off to the appropriate landfill.  DTSC has made some comments on our work plan in the past month.  We addressed those comments.  That essentially involves collecting some additional soil samples.  We have made revisions to our draft report and submitted that to DTSC.  They are in the process of reviewing the revised draft.  Once that draft has been produced by DTSC, that document will then be produced for a 30‑day public comment period.  The public comment period will be initiated.  Right now we are hoping that that public comment period will start at the end of September.  So certainly stay tuned on that one.  

That public comment period would be initiated, of course, with public notice.  Next there is ‑‑ you know right here, I can refer to, generally speaking, this is ‑‑ this area is referred to as Lot One, and this area is referred to as Lot Two.  We had a remedial investigation we have been working on for quite some time now.  We provided DTSC with a draft earlier this year.  They made comments and we addressed those comments and we submitted a revised remedial investigation report for these two areas.  I believe it was the end of July.  And for the Lot Three area that revised remedial investigation report was submitted to DTSC at the end of August.  

Then lastly is a human health risk assessment, which has a presentation that we provided at last month's CAG meeting where we essentially talked about the big picture process of the human health risk assessment.  And that document was provided to DTSC this past week.  And one thing that I did want to bring up with respect to some of these documents that have just been provided to DTSC for pending production, those documents would include the remedial investigation reports for Lots One, Two and Lot Three, the human health risk assessment as well as the PCB/VOC RAW document, which is pending public comment.  

In terms of process we are going to be providing the CAG with a hard copy and with a CD, and it would be our anticipation that additional copies of the CDs or figures or, you know, portions of those documents, would be made using the administrative funds that are provided to the CAG by CSV.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  

MR. MOSTELLER:  That's my update.  I see DTSC is next.

MS. WALLIS:  We'll move directly to the DTSC update and then there will be a joint question and answer for both presentations. 

MS. COOK:  Good evening.  My name is Barbara Cook.  I am with DTSC.  And first let me apologize to CAG for not getting this out for this past week earlier because we had problems in that my job is kind of taking me out of town, and I am not in the office.  So I wasn't able to get back and review it before it was able to go out.  So we have it here tonight.  

I guess I am ‑‑ first a little ‑‑ I am not quite sure if I should go through the Stauffer or the Stauffer‑Zeneca issues, because Doug has just given you an update of the activities that are going on now as well as activities anticipated for the next 30 days.  So to save time I will just let that one go.  If there are any other questions we can discuss those during the question time period.  
The Harbor Front site, which is the business park area, this area over here, what is happening there is a DTSC contractor is revising the groundwater monitoring installation report.  That activity should be done and those reports should be submitted in the next 30 days.  

We are also asking the Zeneca contractor to put together a sampling work plan to help us better define the Chrome Six hexachrome problem that we have at the former Pacific Hard Chrome site.  So we should be reviewing a sampling plan.  

The Richmond UC Field Station, the Department is still reviewing the report for the site.  We also have the time critical removal with regard to the arsenic.  I finished my review of that last night, so hopefully that will be approved in the next couple of days ‑‑ next week.  I am actually in the office part of the week.  

We'll put that ‑‑ that work will begin shortly.  That is looking at removing approximately 100 cubic yards of soil that is impacted with arsenic.  Just to give you an idea, there are usually roughly 20 cubic yards in a truck, so it is roughly 5 truckloads.  That area is currently fenced off, so that work will be done as an emergency removal.  So as such, what the Department is obligated under law to do is to put out a public notice letting you know that that work is going to be done.  

BioRad is performing monitoring on its pilot study system.  The completion report summarizing the work was submitted in early August.  And DTSC is also currently reviewing that report.  Marina Bay, just before I went on vacation, we had a meeting with the property owner and the developer ‑‑ proposed developer as well as the master developer for the site.  And he has agreed to do the soil removal that the Department has asked.  So hopefully that work notice will be coming.  This is a very small amount of excavated soil that needs to be removed in that area.  

And the Area T, DTSC is currently reviewing the quarterly groundwater report for that one.  Stege Pistol Range, maybe we should work together on that one, okay, which happens to be the area that Doug is having a little problem getting access through.  They are looking at doing additional sampling out there to help them get a better cost estimate to figure out what material has to be removed and what it is going to cost to be removed.  So work notice for that activity will be coming out probably sometime in the next week.  

And then Blair Landfill, which is located also in the general area where DTSC is reviewed and commenting on the soil gas work plan.  So that gives us an idea what type of contaminants are there.  That is the end of the DTSC's update.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you, Ms. Cook.  We will move on our question‑and‑answer period, as we did with the last presentation.  We will begin with taking questions from the CAG, and then I will open it to the audience.  We have 15 minutes allocated to this period.  So the first half or so we will spend on CAG questions.  Again, please use the green question slips to help you organize your thoughts, and then we can capture it if it can't be addressed.  So I see a hand.  Ms. Graves? 

MS. GRAVES:  I have a question for Doug and a question for Barbara.  Hi, Doug.  At the last meeting in August you talked about pore water samples.  And they were supposed to be ‑‑ the analysis was supposed to be ‑‑

MR. MOSTELLER:  We did complete our analysis, and we are in the process of developing a report that would be submitted to DTSC.  And just as an FYI, the pore water is a method ‑‑ I have explained this a couple of times in the CAG, but I know there are a lot of new faces in the audience tonight.  So my best visual for what pore water is is if you were to, say, have a fish tank full of marbles and sand, and you pour water into a fish tank, pore water is that water between the marbles and the sand.  And to collect the samples you would essentially take a large chunk of soil and then we have that sent off to a laboratory where it is centrifuged, so it is basically spun.  So we extract the water and have that analyzed.  So that type of procedure is done for samples collected within East Stage Marsh, and we have those results back, and we're in the process of producing that report. 

MS. GRAVES:  That is it.  And then for Barbara on the West Shores Area, I am sorry, I do not recall what testing has been done of the chemicals or the contaminants in that area so that you know that whatever you are removing, the dust particles aren't taking anything into the surrounding areas that you don't know about.  

MS. COOK:  Basically the chemicals in this area are metals, primarily lead.  So you would do air monitoring samples, primarily looking for lead.  But what you do is the air monitoring because it takes time to test for lead.  The evaluation is to look for dust particulates.  So if you have no dust particulates, if you keep the dust down to acceptable levels you won't have the lead exposure because you can't do a real‑time measure of that quickly.

MS. WALLIS:  A question from Ms. Padgett and then Ms. Abbott. 

MS. PADGETT:  This question is for you, Barbara, or you, Doug.  I have two questions relating to anomalies.  Magnetometer surveys were conducted at both the UC Richmond Field Station in the Bulb area, and a magnetometer survey was conducted in Lot Three of the Zeneca‑Cherokee site.  And in both of those cases large anomalies were located.  What is the status of the investigation of the large anomaly in the Bulb area of the UC Richmond Field Station ‑‑ that does not apply to Doug ‑‑ and what is the status of the investigation of the large anomalies, there were multiple, just south of Building 240 on the Zeneca site?  

MS. COOK:  I am going to let Doug answer and then I am going to get the answer for you.   

MR. MOSTELLER:  With respect to following up essentially on the magnetometer study that was completed on Lot Three, one of things we have been thinking of is we have to have some contractors with some equipment out there to do that work.  One of things we have been contemplating is can we use those same contractors to essentially do that follow‑up investigation.  Because one of the things that we would love to do is something that is referred to as pot‑holing.  You go with a backhoe and you pick up some soil, and you will essentially see what is down there.  It is essentially similar to the approach that I believe DTSC took at another area out in here.  

Now to do that we would have to submit a work plan to DTSC and have that approved with the appropriate health and safety plans and things of that nature.  I saw your hand go up, so I immediately knew that was the follow‑up question.

MS. COOK:  The Bulb, the issue is it has been identified as a data gap, and it will be investigated as part of filling out the data gaps.  And based on the information that we have received, the comment is that the material is going to be 30 feet down.  So that takes quite a bit of effort and quite a bit of planning, to go down that area and especially the area that you are looking at.  It is going to require a lot of sheet piling as well. 

MS. WALLIS:  Ms. Abbott?

MS. ABBOTT:  Why don't you go ahead?  

DR. ESPOSITO:  I think we have raised this issue before.  One of the concerns about the material that may be 30 feet down in the Bulb is that we started to look for magnetometer‑positive material in this area, given the account of Rick Alcaraz that some 40 years ago he participated in the burial of drums that he was told that might contain radioactive waste and then subsequently became ill, exhibiting symptoms which are classical of about a three gray exposure to alpha particle radiation.  

That being said, the initial survey of the ground, in addition to the magnetometer survey it was surveyed with, was using an Ortec 51 instrument which would detect radiation at ground level and slightly below -- it was found to be clean.  The issue remains is there anything radioactive 30 feet below the ground.  That area is now, as far as we know per the latest information, marked with a skateboard.  Maybe it needs a sign that says, "Don't dig here until we have characterized this area."

MS. COOK:  There is no skateboard anymore.  We know where it is without it.  The grading was done in regards to the area, and the location is ‑‑ it is not that easy to access.  Okay.  And we are going to have to come up with very detailed protocols with regards to doing that investigation, because you are right.  You cannot determine from the radiation at ground level as to what would exist at 30 feet.

MS. WALLIS:  We'll take a question from Ms. Abbott, and then I will go to the audience to take questions.

MS. ABBOTT:  Two questions and when, again, with these surveys the magnetometer surveys, Dr. Esposito has talked at length about excavation and the care that needs to be taken.  And I am a little nervous about hearing about a backhoe.  So I hope that he will elaborate on that a little bit, and it we will all be safe here.  My question ‑‑ I don't know whose handout this is.  I guess it is ‑‑ it is not yours? 

MR. MOSTELLER:  Produced by consultants of ours.  The consultants produced that. 

MS. PADGETT:  It is coming up.

MS. WALLIS:  We have time for a few questions from the audience.  I see a hand here and in the back.  Okay.  

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I would like to know if DTSC has ordered the entire area around Forest Products to be tested.  My understanding, and I would like somebody in the CAG to go back or I would be happy to look over the notes.  My understanding was that DTSC had asked UC not to move anybody into Forest Products until the area had been fully characterized.  People are being moved in there.  

And, I mean, one of the things that particularly disturbs me was the sudden discovery of more arsenic around the Forest Products Lab.  I know that arsenic had been removed from that area or very close by earlier, I believe in 2004.  One of the employees has shown me pictures of the removal that was done, practically in the dead of night or during a weekend.  And it is a known area for arsenic.  So I just wonder what kind of orders that DTSC has made concerning that area.  

MS. COOK:  Well, first the order the Department has issued against the UC is to do an evaluation of the property, evaluation ‑‑ evaluate what information is there, look out for the data gaps, and then do a comprehensive investigation to define what problems exist in the property.  To be honest with you, I don't remember making the statement that you are attributing to me, but I don't ‑‑ I am not going to confirm or deny that I actually said it.  So if you want to go back and look at the documents, fine. 

I don't know if we have any documentation that would substantiate us saying that people can't be moved in.  So we will go back and look at and evaluate that issue.  But the order that we have is a comprehensive order to investigate the site.

MS. WALLIS:  Another question from the audience.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Doug, I know you mentioned many, many different reports there that you were talking about, but I know one of the things you were preparing is a historic look at how the phosphate fertilizer was produced and where the waste streams went.  Was that in some report that you mentioned, and if so could you talk about that to the time line?

MR. MOSTELLER:  Yeah.  The short answer is we are coordinating with that, but we are not actually producing that.  That is a document that Zeneca, as part of their essentially historical radiological site assessment, is producing.  So we are ‑‑ you know, we are trying to, you know, in any that we can provide information to them ‑‑ and I know they have also requested information from members of the CAG ‑‑ but they are consolidating that information, and certainly we would be reviewing a report and providing our comments on it.  And then I believe that it would be sent to both DTSC and DHS ‑‑ DPH.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Do you know anything about the timing?  Do you know? 

MR. MOSTELLER:  The last I heard was October.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Of this year?

MR. MOSTELLER:  Of this year.  What I do know is they are going through a lot of the suggestions that were provided and making some additional phone calls and interviews.

MS. WALLIS:  We have time for one more question.  And I saw Ms. Padgett's hand.

MS. PADGETT:  This relates to the comment you just made, Doug.  I want to be sure that we understand and want to clarify what you just said.  If we understand what you just said, Cherokee is not involved in the radiological historical assessment, that the entire investigation or the assessment is being done by Zeneca, and Cherokee‑Simeon is a participant in looking at that product just as we, the CAG, and the public are? 

MR. MOSTELLER:  I would say we are probably a little bit more involved than, perhaps, the public or the CAG.  But Zeneca is taking the lead on this for the primary reason that a lot of the questions that have been raised are associated with their history, associated with their corporate history, essentially.  And they have access to documents that we don't have.

MS. PADGETT:  So will Levine Fricke be writing this report?

MR. MOSTELLER:  No.  

MS. PADGETT:  Do you know who will be?

MR. MOSTELLER:  I believe ‑‑ you know, I don't know the names of the individuals, but I believe it is through radiological experts that were present at a meeting on July 13th.

MS. PADGETT:  So will Zeneca come and talk to us about this? 

MR. MOSTELLER:  I don't know that.  I can't answer. 

MS. PADGETT:  That is an open question.

MS. WALLIS:  Is that something that we need to record on the action list? 

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.

MS. WALLIS:  I saw some interest on your part.  Dr. Esposito.  Does that address it?

If we did not have a chance to get to a question or a comment regarding this last ‑‑ these last two presentations, please write it down on a green slip and submit it to me.  I lost track of the marker, but I want to make sure that we record Ms. Padgett's follow‑up issue for the action list.  Would you please give me a sentence to record how you would like that?

MS. PADGETT:  Request Zeneca to make a presentation on the radiological historical assessment.

MS. WALLIS:  Radiological historical?

MS. PADGETT:  Yes, assessment.

MS. WALLIS:  And I know we have Ms. Broadwell as well, getting the words.

MS. PADGETT:  Thank you for that.

DR. ESPOSITO:  I think the question includes more specifically, when will we have Dr. Robert Meyer’s (CSV Radiological Consultant, Tetra Tech) response on the methods that were used for radiological analysis.  It's been asked for sometime ago.

MS. WALLIS:  When will we have Dr. Robert Meyer’s ‑‑ 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Report on rad methods.

MS. WALLIS:  We are now moving to the next agenda item which is the Toxic Committee's update with a special report on Lot Three.  And I will turn the microphone over to Dr. Esposito.

DR. ESPOSITO:  The way that we are going to proceed with the Toxics Committee update this evening is to lead off with Dorinda and Stuart Siegel, and after Stuart has made his presentation I am going to be asking Jean Rabovsky, the former chair of the Toxics Committee, to make some comments on the use of pesticides at the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area.  Following that I will return to tell you something about the Toxics Committee's work during the past month.  And then I will move on directly to the issue of hiring of radiological consultants.  So I would like to proceed now, if Dorinda will take the microphone.  And we'll get onto the issue of the Stege Marsh.

MS. SHIPMAN:  Well, as Michael mentioned with us tonight we have Stuart Siegel, who is the president and principal with Wetlands and Water Research.  And Stuart is providing wetlands and marsh expertise for our team for technical support of the CAG.

As someone brought up earlier, we have passed out a handout which has a table and four figures.  And we have got three of these figures also in kind of large format on the wall here.  And this is ‑‑ these are some figures and a table that Stuart will be referring to during his presentation.  So without anymore ado, I will turn it over to Stuart.

DR. SIEGEL:  Thanks, Dorinda.  What I want to try and do is give you a sense of what the findings are so far relative to East Stege Marsh.  As many of you may know, there was a remedial action taken a year and a half or so ago ‑‑ and give a sense of what it has produced and some of the questions we have in relation to that system.  

So we will have input from the CAG in terms of what some of the questions were that I could try to address here.  And I am going to try to cover four of these questions tonight.  First one is whether remediation work has resolved ecological exposure questions in East Stege Marsh.  The next one is looking at the transport between the Lot Three, the uplands area, into the marsh and perhaps also into the Bay.  And there are some questions there about ongoing transports.  If there are ongoing transports, will contaminants reach the marsh and/or San Francisco Bay.  And if there so, will there be ecological exposure with that.  

I think there are some questions there, and I had some ideas on how to investigate that.  And hearing tonight that there are Pore Water samples I am curious to hear the results as that will tie into my understanding of what might be going on in the system.  And lastly in terms of remediation of the marsh, its restoration, and how is that doing in terms of ecological outcomes for the marsh.  I have to say that I always feel kind of humble that I do the ecological work and I listen to some of the issues about public health and those levels because this stuff sometimes seems less important to me than what the human consequences are.  I was with Richmond Field Station for many years and knew some of those folks who aren't here with us anymore, and I want to acknowledge that.  

So the first question here, and this will be a little hard.  That's why we have some handouts here because it's hard to see some of the stuff here.  The excavation was done, and the way I have it on the map here, the area in the gray here, is excavation work done in the East Stege Marsh and also in the upper lagoon, I believe, in 2005 and 2006.  And I was not involved, honestly, in the aspects of deciding how much of the marsh to excavate there.  

I found in one of the reports, on the right, a graphic here which I have shown, which is how much of the contamination do you get out versus how much disturbance is caused in the marsh.  And that is often a question that is addressed in ecological restoration, which is often times doing the remediation can be more damaging than leaving the contaminants in.  So it is a trade‑off analysis that is done there.  What I don't know is how far that crew went in the investigation.  And perhaps some additional data may shed some light on that.  

But clearly by taking dirt out that was there, they removed contaminants that were a level of exposure to wildlife, plants and wildlife in the marsh.  It is just a question of is it complete or not.  And I haven't gotten to the point of answering that question fully.  But the excavation, I am sure, was quite helpful.  The thing that I have come to in looking at this whole situation more is that those sediments that were removed are on the receiving end of the contaminants.  They are not the source.  So in my mind in many ways what was done was to address the symptom and not the cause.  

And the more I start looking at the data, the more it suggests to me that we have ongoing problems.  What happens over time is the marsh that is restored with clean backfill will become contaminated again and we will have to do it all over again.  And until we address the cause of the contamination of the marsh, you are digging the marsh out and disturbing it over and over again and spending lots of money on it.  

What I have tried to do is to draw this picture here to try to get an idea in my own mind and try to convey to you what I think might be going on.  This is a very hypothetical cross‑section, not to scale because I did it very quickly just to get a sense of things.  On the left is the Bay Trail side of the East Stege Marsh.  On the right is the uplands part of Lot Three.  I have drawn a line in here for the biologically active permeable barrier.  And then I put some elevations in there, over here.  The construction elevations, the channel they built is zero NGBD, two feet on top of the banks and the marsh is around four.  

Then I asked the question, what about the groundwater elevations that are being measured on the bay side of the barrier.  And then there is quite a bit of data seen on contaminants that are in the groundwater on the bayward side of the area.  So the barrier has partial effectiveness, and whatever comes through, what is happening to that.  

And so the key conclusion here is that the groundwater elevation data measured on the bayward side of the barrier, that was about three to four NGDB.  That depends on time of year.  So there is variability on that, but it is three to four feet.  I put over here the mean tide level, MTL.  That is the average of all of the tides that go up and down every day over long periods of time.  And that is 0.6 feet.  If you think about water moving downhill you have got about two and a half to three and a half feet of vertical drop on average that the groundwater can keep moving towards that marsh.  So the three green arrows I have drawn here are three different ways it can go.  I don't know which way it goes at this point in time.

The first one I labeled A, is it may go across the marsh and may hit soils here and moves through and it jumps up and out and literally has become groundwater seeps that are quite common.  And it flows out of the marsh across the surface.  The second possibility here is that it goes subsurface through the marsh into the channel and it discharges when the tide is out into the channel there. 

And the third possibility is it goes underneath the entire marsh.  And one of the things I found looking in the reports is that when they did the excavation they excavated twice as much dirt as they planned on doing.  The reason for that is the sediments out in the marsh before it was cleaned up were incredibly soft.  And they kept having problems with the equipment out there.  And they had to go deeper to what they described as a hard underlying layer so they could support the equipment doing the work.  So they had to go down five to six feet instead of two to three feet.  

So I believe there is a hard pan here, so there is some hard underlying surface.  The third possibility is the groundwater goes under the marsh and hits that which is not that far down, and at that point I have a question mark.  There are a few possibilities of what it could do, and I am not sure at this point.  So what this tells me is that as long as anything makes it through that barrier and there are any contaminants of concern, they are going to keep going into this marsh.  

And the next slide I wanted to look at is what happens to it once it is there.  Before I go on to that, one of the things I want to say is if you look at the mean tide level, 0.6 feet, that means on average of the long‑term that that is the height of the tide.  They go up and they go down.  But if you look at the channels, it is zero.  So basically that ‑‑ if it is zero feet that ‑‑ about 40 percent of the time there are no tides in that marsh whatsoever.  And 60 percent of time there is some water.  So that is quite a bit of time for groundwater to keep moving into the marsh, and if it drops into the channel, and what I put on the wall here and on the handout is the topographic map. 

And one of things I found very interesting was that the channel they built doesn't ‑‑ it is a sump right in here.  This is the channel they built.  These are closed contours which means the water at low tide sits in here.  It doesn't go out to the channel all the way around.  So it has to get higher to cross over from about here to this area.  So water can just sit there at low tide, every single tide.  And that has some relevance. 

The next thing I looked at was what could happen to that groundwater and anything that might be in it.  This is my next little sketch here, not to scale.  So I have drawn this thing that I have called a pool of discharged groundwater, some amount of groundwater that gets into the channel either across the top of the marsh or directly in the soils.  Every single tide there will be a little bit of the groundwater that will end up in the channel effectively.

And as the tide rises, the flood tide or the tides coming in, the water level goes up and then reaches the top of the channel and goes out over the marsh and covers it with water, which is shown by the arrows on the right and the left.  There are two things that happen with the groundwater there and the contaminants that are in it.  And these presumably are dissolved contaminants, not particulates, because particulates would have been filtered presumably at this point.  

On the left one possibility is it goes under the marsh and it stays at the surface.  And at the surface it can be directly ingested by fish that come into the marsh at high tide.  Birds can also ingest that water directly, small mammals can ingest that water directly, and there are invertebrates that filter the water, and that's how they feed, and they take the water with the contaminants, they would be taking it into the body tissue, and they get eaten by birds and fish, so it is a pathway of exposure.  It is on the surface on the left side. 

The other possibility is that it infiltrates into the soil, so when the water goes up, drops into the soil and ends up in the shallow soils here, and that is a root zone for plants, so plants can uptake those contaminates and invertebrates that live, burrow in the soil and then on or near the surface of the soil can also take that up in the same mechanism.  And the small mammals that tend to eat those plants, invertebrates as well as birds, so that can happen.  As you think about it, each tide is probably very minute amounts.  

The idea is in any short period of time, and that period might be a year or two or three, there might be very little change over time as they keep building up.  Because what this mechanism does is it recirculates it in the system.  It comes in the channel.  The channel doesn't drain at low tide.  It sits there.  The tide comes in and mixes it up in the channel, comes up over the bay, it drops it in the marsh, and the tide goes out.  

The other part, of course, is that the tide can go out and take it into the San Francisco Bay.  I think there was a dilution factor that was calculated in one of these prior studies.  Probably what gets out in the bay is of less concern because that would be slight compared to this mechanism which keeps the contaminants recirculating in the marsh over and over again.  

This is the idea that I believe leads to recontamination of the marsh with anything that comes through from the uplands.  The next question is if you want to do something about that and understand it better there are two things.  The pore water sample is a very helpful thing because you want to see what is in that water in the shallow soils, and you want to do that over time.  And you want to see how it changes over time.  

I was looking in my computer at some of the contaminants levels.  Selenium and mercury jumps out at me quite a bit in terms of concentrations that were measured in Stege Marsh after the backfill.  So it is a very simple thing that you can do is a shallow groundwater study.  You put three shallow piezometers in the marsh, put a surface monitor in the surface water in the channel, and measure them through very high tides as happen in the summer and the winter.  And you can see how groundwater is influenced by the tides and by the uplands.  You get a much better sense of what the groundwater is doing in that marsh.  And that is a mechanistic element of it, the transport, and separately you want to sample that water for contaminants, for the contaminant side of things.  

So then the other question I want to get to is the ecological effectiveness of the restoration of the marsh.  This is the picture that went out June 21st of this year.  One of the things that jumped out at me that day was we have big spring tides, especially at the summer solstice and the winter solstice.  The thing you see in this picture right in the foreground here, where it was going on is very dry soil.  They dry and they crack.  It is very common in areas that don't get under water, common in the bay where it doesn't get wet that often.  And we just went through very high tide cycles.  We just had a very wet tide cycle.  I was surprised to see it that dry.  We just had a very wet tide cycle.  The other thing you see here is very few plants.  And they have done a lot of work.  And the replanting in terms of the revegetation, it takes a while, so we'll see how that goes.  My basic comments are wait and see.  

In terms of revegetation and plants, it has a long way to go.  The percent cover of plants is supposed to be 95 percent of nearby marshes.  If you go on the south it is 100 percent cover.  They have a ways to go.  And looking at some of the soils data, I was looking at the nutrients in the backhoe soils.  They are all very low.  It is challenging soil for the plants.  It is just very challenging, and it won't be done in five years.  I would be very surprised to see it revegetating in five years.  

The next question had to do with hydrology.  And putting this together I discovered a data problem.  And it is one that a lot of those working in this field do a lot to avoid, and it didn't get avoided here.  I mentioned a few slides as elevations of everything here.  In national Vertical Data of 1929, everything is reported that way in all of the documents, and that is not used anymore.  It has been replaced in the late '80s by the North American Vertical Data of 1988. 

So the graph I have here is a tide study from last summer.  And what they had done was they converted all the data from one to the other.  And I don't know how it gets done, but they are off by about a foot here.  And everything is internally consistent, which is good, but absolutely is wrong.  And what that makes me wonder is all the relationships between the marsh elevations and the upland elevations and the groundwater data and how they all fit together.  They are off by about .7 feet or .8 feet.  And when you have a small variance, that is a big difference.  

So hydrologically I would say that the marsh is ‑‑ the picture that is kind of dry suggests to me the marsh is a little bit high and will take longer to become a natural marsh again.  And the sediment, I mentioned the nutrients all seem quite low.  They said they got most of the acidity out, which is good.  Grain size, I couldn't find the data.  They said "generally consistent with," but they didn't present the data.  So I don't know what it is.  Organic carbon salinity was within the expected ranges.  It was pretty low, but it is okay.  And the channel is a little more sandy because the tides get there and salt water mixes more with it.  So that is what I wanted to kind of go over here.  And I think, Michael, did you want to do questions or how did you want to do that? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I think we have time for some questions.

MS. ABBOTT:  I had a question.  I need to figure out what it was.

MS. GRAVES:  May I ask a quick one?  On the last slide you had the initials OC.  

DR. SIEGEL:  Organic carbon.  That is a measure of how much organic matter is in there.  The numbers in the soils here are quite low, and they are typically not very high.  It's a very minimal system we have in the estuary.  They are quite low.  And that is not uncommon for a new marsh.  All the soil they brought in was ‑‑ most of it was from a marina dredging around the Bay Area.  And some of them, the soils tend to be pretty low in organic carbon.

MS. ABBOTT:  In the handout there is a Table A, and is that from LFR? 

DR. SIEGEL:  All of these are LFR documents.  This is on, I believe, the first annual monitoring report is where that table came from.  What I haven't gotten to yet is reading the (inaudible) 2002 document.  So what we have here, this table lists the performance criteria for the marsh restoration.  And what is in the first annual monitoring report is some contaminant sampling of the soils.  They looked at the backfill soils they placed.   (Inaudible) they went down about .3 feet.  And they also took samples of the marsh that was left alone.  And they have both those sets of data as well as before the document was brought in it was tested.  And it was given approval before it was brought in to use as backfill. 

The basic thing to say, ultimately, is you want to do the contaminant sampling ‑‑ you want to wait a while.  Presumably what they measure there is what it came in as or very close to it.  You want to give things it a little time for natural processes to work that soil a little bit and then you can see what the contaminant levels do.  They go up, do they go down?  Do certain ones go up, that kind of thing. 

MS. ABBOTT:  Is it built in?

DR. SIEGEL:  I don't know if they are.  There are no performance criteria for the contaminants in the marsh at all. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  Sherry, could you ask the question?  We need to move on.

MS. PADGETT:  It is somewhat of a rhetorical question.  I don't know if you can answer it.  As far as I remember, DTSC accepted and approved and finalized the marsh restoration and put it on, I think, a five‑year review or something.  So I am not sure what we can do.  And we had these concerns, the concerns that you are bringing up, these questions, they had been questions all along.  And now that they continue to be questions, we, as a community advisory group and probably the Toxics Committee, need to go back and examine what it is we can do now in our relationship with DTSC about DTSC having put a stamp of approval on the marsh restoration as it exists today.  And so I just raise that as a point because your questions are all valid.  They are our questions as well.  So I think we need to go back and redress or look at what is going on with the marsh restoration.  That is one.  

The second, it relates to the ecological risk assessment.  There is health risk assessment relating to humans and there is ecological risk assessment relating to the critters.  And if we have recontamination of the marsh, should we have reexamination of what is going on with those critters in the marsh and in the uplands.  And I ‑‑ I know that may not be your area of expertise but maybe again, that is another rhetorical question.

DR. SIEGEL:  On the first question it is a five‑year monitoring plan.  And commonly you make plots as to how things are evolving.  If you see things are moving in a bad direction you don't wait five years and say, "It is not going well."  Take a look at what you want to do.  Don't wait until the five years… look earlier for signs of problems.  

On the second question, certain species will use both sides, the upland side which is a very disturbed environment, is going to be rodents mostly that burrow and squirrels and rats and voles and mice that burrow and presumably there is some potential there, and they are eaten by birds.  And those birds tend to move back and forth between the marsh, and so it's some of the same receptors.  On the marsh side the selenium values are the ones that jumped out at me the most.  The mercury is an endemic problem in the area.  It is everywhere.  It is not unique to this place.  And some of the regions are trying to figure what to do about the mercury.  But selenium is a problem, and we have (inaudible) to know the effect of elevated selenium levels.  And here obviously an elevated selenium jumped out at me the most.

MR. THOMPSON:  I would like to add some information to part of this landfill in there.  At one time that used to be a lagoon in there.  And where Costco is, that was a little strip of land there.  And they brought in fill dirt and they changed the tide structure.  The tide doesn't come in any more like it used to.  And they put in a drainage north of the mail breakdown place there.  So you got a deal that where a high tide comes in from that end, and it circulates and fills in the railroad property there, and then sometimes it will go back out with the tide, but at the same time it circulates and it comes around into that marsh area and goes back out.  So what we have is sediment being pushed and rearranged in there.  Because you have got at least, about what, one, two, three ‑‑ you got about four different tides between Golden Gate Field and here.  

DR. SIEGEL:  What they didn't mention is that there is an expectation that the marsh restoration of sediment will build up slowly with sedimentation over time.  And where does it come?  Some of it comes from outside and there is a lot of circulation through it.  If you look through here there is a lot of unusual circulation patterns in the breakwaters and the land around Point Isabel, everything there, so there is a lot of the mud in the bottom of the Bay that gets picked up moved around during the tide, dropped off, picked up and moved around.  So the mechanism by which the very ‑‑ the newly‑deposited sediments will come from right near offshore in that area. 

MR. THOMPSON:  If you check in the area there on the railroad property in between the Bay Trail and Knox Freeway, you can see little ‑‑ what do you want to call them?  They are little crevices in the mud.  You have mud there at least as deep as this table here or deeper where the water stays, and it circulates in between there even at low tide.

DR. SIEGEL:  Right.  A lot of these areas don't drain that well.  A restoration was done at the north end of the marsh near 580.  It was called the toilet bowl, and it just goes around in circles.  It has that nickname because of how it functions there.  It is very poor for water quality and it exacerbates the problem.

MR. THOMPSON:  You have a lot of water, and it doesn't go any place.

DR. ESPOSITO:  Thank you very much, Stuart.  Moving on, I would like to ask Dr. Rabovsky to make a comment about pesticide use at the Shoreline area.

DR. RABOVSKY:  Thank you for allowing me to share my concerns about herbicide use at the Richmond Southeast Shoreline Area.  My name is Jean Rabovsky.  I am a retired toxicologist and former member of the Community Advisory Group also called the CAG.  Out of respect for time I will read a short statement that relates to my general concerns.  This statement together with more detailed information on the herbicides glyphosate and triclopyr will be submitted to the CAG.  Please note that a brief review of these herbicides is not meant to represent a complete search of the available information.  Rather it is meant as a brief overview to emphasize concerns about their use.  I hope that the CAG will be interested to pursue these concerns, and references are provided to aid in more in‑depth evaluation.  

Among potential toxic exposures at RSSA are herbicides applied during cleanup and maintenance activities.  In one case the CAG learned through a concerned citizen that herbicide was being applied to one section in order to remove invading plant species.  From time to time CAG members have been informed by DTSC that herbicide was being applied to a temporary cap under which toxins were stored to prevent the excursion of plants that could destroy the integrity of the cap.

Following a request for specific information the CAG learned the identities of the herbicide preparations.  As far as I know they are Roundup Pro Dry, which contains glyphosate.  Glyphosate Pro 2 also contains the same herbicide, and Garland 3A, which contains triclopyr.  In response to concerns about the health and safety of community members and ecologic receptors, the CAG received a material data safety sheet (inaudible) for glyphosate and assurance that the triclopyr formulation would be applied to the cap only under conditions that do not impact public health. 

While the information in the MSDS on glyphosate and the determination about the safe use of triclopyr is appreciated, issues remain unresolved and dialogue has been lacking.  

There are two major concerns about the lack of dialogue on the use of these herbicides on RSSA.  First the lack of dialogue with the public in general and with the CAG in particular leaves the perception that the community is considered irrelevant in the process of clean up of the site.  The CAG was formed to ensure adequate clean up of the RSSA and to work with the lead agency to enable all parties to understand the exposure and health issues faced by past, current, and future community members.  

Potential health issues posed by the use of glyphosate and triclopyr cannot be addressed if dialogue does not occur.  Among issues that were raised but not discussed were the chemical names of the inactive as well as the active ingredients, the basis of the toxicological analysis for each pesticide, that is, was the analysis based on the pure herbicide or on the formulation being used, health and safety oversight of workers who apply the herbicides, notification of nearby residential and business communities, and recreational users of the Bay Trail.  

The second concern is the toxicologic basis for the conclusion of the application of the glyphosate triclopyr formulation will not adversely affect community members or ecologic receptors.  This information is critical because the toxicologic properties of the pure herbicides and the manufactured formulations are complex.  Glyphosate and triclopyr are each associated with toxicologic issues that need discussion and understanding.  These issues include the effect of non‑herbicide components on the potential adverse affects of the manufactured formulation, the effect of the pure herbicide or formulated preparation on ecologic receptors, the affect of the non‑herbicide ingredients on the uptake and bioavailability of the active herbicide component and understanding that the evaluation of the same studies by different agencies and individual scientists may lead to different conclusions and the effect of interspecies variation in response to an herbicide.  

In terms of the herbicide use at the RSSA, negative impacts on the health of community members and ecologic receptors may be negligible or they may be significant.  Open dialogue between the CAG and community with decision‑makers would go a long way to overcome the perception that the community is considered irrelevant to positions regarding cleanup and maintenance activities.  Thank you for your time.

DR. ESPOSITO:  If you have questions for Dr. Rabovsky, please put them on the green sheet and give them to Carolyn Graves.

I would like to move on now to the Toxics Committee summary.  I would like to tell you a little bit about what we have been doing, and I think you, by now, the audience, have a copy of the Toxics Committee summary.  For your inquiry of what has been going on in the last few months, there has been a lot of activity.  One of the things that the Toxics Committee has currently been working on is public comments on the Public Health Assessment for the Richmond Field Station, which we just heard about.  We will be responding as a body to that document.  

We are also reviewing the final draft of the Remediation Investigations for Lots One and Two.  We are also examining the RFS-PHA.  And we will be commenting on these documents.  One of the issues that has continued to interest the Toxics Committee is a question that we don't normally ask at these meetings.  But we would like to put it straight before you.  And that is, “is there any published medical or scientific evidence demonstrating that DTSC's environmental remediation protocols, capping, chemical and biological treatment of groundwater, and permitting maximum containment levels of chemicals, metals and radiological contaminants, and restrictions upon land and water use, covenants and deed restrictions that have been shown to be protective of human health by actual surveys in the out‑years following these remediation protocols?”  

Now, asking that question doesn't mean that we don't recognize there is a large body of rational thought that goes into remediation techniques, risk estimation and toxicology.  The question that we are asking is, is there data that indicates that health has been protected.  So we posed this question at the Cal EPA, DTSC website, they have a spot where you can pose questions.  And after some prodding, I did receive an answer which was, "Go to the library."  I was given a list of journal archives that might have the answer to this question, but I was unable to get an answer.  I have asked other people, and this is a difficult question to answer because these kinds of epidemiological studies would be very difficult to do.  I relayed the question to the chief of the Human and Ecological Risk Division, Dr. Steven DiZio, and I discussed it briefly with Dr. Kreutzer this evening, and I will await their reply.  

The reason for asking this question is not simply to be a nuisance, though I may be, it is how do we view, as the public, the solutions that are presented to us.  There are some mysteries in toxicology that I don't understand like, for example, the USEPA levels for uranium in drinking water.  The maximum limit is 30 picoCuries per liter.  In California it is 20 picoCuries per liter.  Now, are we somehow more sensitive than the rest of the country, or are there factors in coming up with these numbers that are soft?  One of the things that we are concerned about is that the human population is as variable one to the next as we are as a whole from Chimpanzees.  There is enormous variability in the human population.  When we say the risk is one in a million, one death, it can be one group, one in 100,000 and the next group one in 10,000.  So we don't know who are the canaries in the miner’s cage are among us.  And that is something that we want to bear in mind, and we would like to know how effective are all of these treatments.  So we as the Toxics Committee say the CAG and the rest of the community should know whether the CALEPA‑DTSC remediation techniques actually protect human health.  If not we will look at the recommendations with a jaundiced eye.  

Now I would like to move on to another issue which has to do with our committee supporting the ongoing investigation under the multi‑agency radiation survey of the use of uranium and the manufacturing of uranium, that was carried out at the Richmond site by the Stauffer Metals Incorporated of Richmond.  It is very interesting that the very early documents that were written about the issues at the site didn't even mention the existence of this company in detail.  And largely through the initial efforts of Sherry Padgett and then following on her work, we discovered that, in point of fact, this company was one of 109 companies in the United States that handled natural uranium metal.  

There are many atomic weapons employees, but many of them were just making nuts and bolts.  There were thousands of them.  But there were only 109 that actually used natural uranium metal and worked on it.  Now, the National Institute of Occupational Safety and Health revisited the issue of what was the maximum dose to these employees in the 2003-2005, and calculated the organ doses for ionizing radiation to these workers on an annual basis and I have listed some organs here.  One of those organs won't be familiar to you.  It's called “your remainder.”  That is the rest of the stuff that is inside you after you have examined all these others.  

Now, to date, at the Zeneca‑Stauffer site we have had radiological analysis for only 23 soil sample sites.  This is an 85‑acre site.  That is one sample site per 168 thousand square feet.  The initial survey for chemical contamination was done on a grid of squares that were 200 feet by 200 feet, that is, one per 40,000 square feet.  So the initial radiological survey was done at about a fourfold lower intensity.  

Moreover, the sites where these samples were taken include many areas that were covered by what I call synthetic soil, and that is material that was compounded from concrete and cinders and imported landfill and spread at various thicknesses.  The radioactive contaminant status of that material is less interesting than the actual soil that lies below it because that is likely where the radioactive contamination is going to be.  So we don’t know how many of these soil samples are relevant at all.  But what we do know is the National Academy of Scientists concluded that there is no non‑harmful dose of ionizing radiation.  So we would hope that in the future that the MARSSIM investigation will take into account some of these issues.  

So that is part of the work that we have been doing, certainly not all of it.  It's been a very busy season.  I would like to move on now, to the issue of the radiological consultant, and maybe you can ask some questions if you have them, sort of in combination with all of that.  And that will save us some time.  Would that be okay?  The situation is as follows, and I think most of you know that we are in the early stages as far as the implementing the Memorandum of Agreement ‑‑ it's good to have prompters.  This is like a theater.  The Memorandum of Agreement between ourselves and CSV.  We have had some bumps in the road.  There have been some letters written.  We have responded.  I probably have seen before such issues because we are a large organization, but we are made up of small committees that do a lot of the work.  And sometimes we have to make decisions “a capella”, okay, by the hat.  And one of the issues that we have had to deal with was that fact that it was time to move on and to appoint a new radiological consultant that could do the work for us in a timely fashion and deal with our issues.  

After interviewing at least three organizations, we arrived at a final candidate, and can I get a volunteer to hand me that book on the table?  It is one of my props.  The final candidate company that we decided on is called Dade and Moeller Associates.  This company has been approved by DTSC, it has by approved by CSV, it has been approved by Zeneca, it was approved by the vote of the Toxics Committee, and it was approved by vote of the Executive Committee.  So now what I am going to do after I describe it to you is ask for someone to introduce a motion that the CAG affirm this appointment.  

Let me tell you something about Dade Moeller.  Dade Moeller is a now-retired emeritus professor from Harvard University who has written the gold standard text on environmental health.  This is the third edition.  Dade has trained hundreds of health scientists, and I am very pleased to say that he was ‑‑ his company was recommended to us initially by Peter Weiner.  Thank you.  And I didn't just buy this book.  I had it on my shelf.  And I also used it when I used to teach courses.  So it was nice to get back to dealing with Dade.  

Now, the individuals that will be representing us from Dade Moeller are William Kennedy and Steve Bump.  Both of them have outstanding records in the areas of investigation that we need, measurement of radioactive material, study of demolition sites, characterization of sites after buildings have been raised, groundwater, human risk, critter risk.  I think these are important components.  And in conversation with them, I think that what we look forward to is a dialogue.  

I think the test in consultancy is not whether someone agrees with you but whether they are willing to argue with you and to have a discussion.  And I think that that was demonstrated in our discussions.  They have participated in numerous governmental studies of areas such as this and especially the atomic weapons employer in Richmond, Washington Hanford Reservation and others.  So I think that the CAG has already received the C.V.s of the individuals, the corporate description for Dade Moeller & Associates.  

MR. BLUM:  Without objection I move approval.

MS. PADGETT:  I second.

DR. ESPOSITO:  All in favor?  Any opposed?  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Does that conclude that item for you, Dr. Esposito? 

DR. ESPOSITO:  It concludes it. 

MS. WALLIS:  I know some of you were not here in the beginning.  We announced that we will be going a few minutes over.  We will be getting to the few remaining agenda items in the next few minutes.  So we will do so as quickly as possible out of respect for everyone's time.  We are now to the item of deferring hiring, firing, of Cherokee‑Simeon, DTSC, MOA, consultants to the Bylaws Committee for process, review and recommendation.  This is Mr. Munoz and Mr. Blum's item. 

MR. MUNOZ:  We will go ahead and take that back to the Bylaws Committee.  Given the discussion right now that we just had, I just wanted to read the following paragraph from our bylaws because I think there is a little bit of disconnect between what the understanding of what the bylaws is and what was just discussed.  In Section 3.2 it states under the Executive Committee that the three officers and the Chair of the Toxics Committee shall serve as the members of the Executive Committee, and “except for the power to amend articles of incorporation, if they exist, and bylaws”, the Executive Committee shall have the powers and the authority over the CAG members in intervals between meetings of the CAG and is subject to the direction and control of the CAG.  So the reason I am reading this is because since we meet on a monthly basis, many things do come up throughout the month where action is needed in order to keep the agenda moving forward.  So at times there will be needs, such as this instance, where the Executive Committee will need to make decisions, and I want to make it clear that in doing so they do have the full authority and power given to them by the CAG members. 

MS. WALLIS:  Is your question for Mr. Munoz?

MS. PADGETT:  Yes.  I think what we were hoping to do was to defer back to the Bylaws Committee a review and discussion of this issue, and of not just the hiring and firing of consultants, but also a re-review of that very question.  What kinds of issues can the Executive Committee or other committees or other members of the CAG decide between meetings and what kinds of things need to come back to the CAG for a discussion and full vote.  

So I think what we are looking for ‑‑ maybe we don't need a motion, but maybe we do need a motion.  And that is to put back to the Bylaws Committee ‑‑ and maybe no motion is needed.  A review of this and also consider asking our legal counsel if they have anything they want to add and ask if they have something they want to add right now.

MR. MUNOZ:  We will definitely take it back to the committee.  I wanted to read that just because in the meantime while we are figuring things out and discussing this I would not want for anything to get in the way of the CAG continuing to do its work between meetings, but we will take it back into the work.  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  Dr. Esposito, before we move on to public comment. 

DR. ESPOSITO:  I had only one question to ask the Bylaws Committee.  It would be very helpful if the Bylaws Committee would take the Memorandum of Agreement and reconcile the mechanisms set forth in that memorandum against our bylaws and see if there are any conflicts that need to be resolved.  I think that would be very helpful and now it is to Peter.

MS. WALLIS:  So a comment on this issue from ‑‑ 

MR. WEINER:  I just want to be clear, we would be happy to work with the Bylaws Committee just to take a look at how you govern yourselves in terms of which committee decides what, and also how you memorialize things when you are acting by committee, in terms of votes, in terms of having actual meetings that can be by phone, of course, of those committees, rather than just serial phone calls.  Because to the extent that committees make recommendations and certainly to the extent they make decisions, in most non‑profit organizations such as yours, there is some kind of minutes of the committees as well as of the CAG and the organization as a whole.  There are votes taken, and we would be happy to work with you on that.  I think the idea has always been that where timing makes things necessary to decide, they are decided in the interim, as you said and that otherwise important decisions come to the CAG for discussion.  And anyway, we would be happy to work with you on that.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you for that.  That concludes that item.  We will move on to our public comment period.  So what I would like to do is see hands of those who are interested in making comment.  We'll stick to our one and a half minute time limit.  And I saw a hand here.  Are there other comments from the audience? 

MR. FREIBERG:  Hi.  I'm Mark Freiberg.  I am the Director of the Office of Environmental Health and Safety for the University of California, Berkeley.  I want to quickly express my appreciation for the work that Department of Public Health and Contra Costa County did in preparing the draft public health assessment.  I also want to express my appreciation to the CAG members for the comments that you offered up to the Agency tonight and those that I know you will be providing to them in writing.  It is only with comments like that that they will be able to come up with a quality document.  And we too are interested in a high quality final public health assessment because safety is the number one priority for us for our property, the people that work on it, any of the work performed on the site.  We too believe in the precautionary principle that these risk assessments should be based on conservative assumptions, and we are reassured that even with the conservative assumptions that they made in the draft, that they found that it is safe to be on the Richmond Field Station and on the Bay Trail.  Where DPH has determined that it would have been helpful for them to have more data to ensure the safety of certain operations, honestly we wish they had asked us for more data.  We would have provided it.  But we are going to collaborate with them to help them with their final assessment.  Also we will be working with DTSC as our lead agency to determine what additional soil and groundwater sampling might be necessary, the questions about moving people and operations, et cetera.  Finally I want to assure you we take this report seriously, and we have an excellent track record of implementing recommendations.  If you look at the 2006 statement we implemented 12 of those 13 recommendations, and the thirteenth is now scheduled.  Thank you again for your input.

MS. WALLIS:  Thank you.  Another comment from the audience.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  I want to just put on the record that unions together at the University of California for as long as this investigation has been going on with the CAG being in existence, that we have asked repeatedly for further characterization of what other testing will be done, and we were told “we won't do anything until the DTSC tells us what they want.”  

MS. WALLIS:  Other comments?  I'd like to ask the CAG members if there are any final comments or questions or issues that you would like to raise before we do our final wrap‑up.  Ms. Abbott?

MS. ABBOTT:  This is more in the nature of an announcement.  I do have a brochure for something called A Greener Shade Of Blue, Eighth Biannual State of the San Francisco Estuary Conference, October 16, 17, and 18.  I only have one copy, but if anybody is interested please come and look at it.  I will post it at the library.  It may be of interest.  

MS. WALLIS:  Ms. Graves? 

MS. GRAVES:  This is important for the members of the CAG, if they are willing.  I would like to have someone do a motion, if we could, to try approving the minutes for July and August.  It wasn't on the agenda because I was afraid of time, but we're doing okay so if we could do that, that would be fantastic.  But we need a motion for that.  

MR. ALVAREZ:  Motion made.

MS. GRAVES:  Can we approve the minutes for July and August?  All in favor?  Any opposed?  Okay.  The motion passes.  Thank you.

MS. WALLIS:  If there are no final issues or questions from the CAG members I will announce that the CAG will meet again on the second Thursday of October in the same location and at the same time.  

(The meeting was adjourned)
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RSSA Community Advisory Group

Shimada Room, Richmond City, CA

16 August 2007
Meeting called to order at 7:00 PM

Members present:

M. Esposito, C. Graves, S. Linsley, S. Padgett, J. Robinson, and J. Broadwell (guest)

Administration:

Agenda review
Minutes review: 21 June 2007 minutes approved, 19 July 2007 minutes review deferred to 20 September 2007.

Updates:

Call to action. The UCB and Astra-Zeneca were cited July 2007 for illegally treating and dumping toxic materials. Both could be fined up to $25,000 per day if they do not correct the violations. However, on 8/11/07 the Contra Costa Times reported that Angela Blanchette of DTSC hoped to avoid meting out the punishment. Sherry Padgett, acting in her capacity as a member of BARRD, emailed community members urging them to email M. Gorsen, Director, Cal EPA Dept. of Toxics Substances Control (MGorsen@dtsc.ca.gov) or call 916-322-0504 to demand enforcement of the law.

Stauffer Metals, Inc. - Sherry Pagett has uncovered 68 patents for electron beam furnaces. M.Esposito noted that one of the patents describes the construction of crucibles that can be used for melting of uranium metal. Another describes development of tantalum capsules for plutonium nuclear reactor fuel.

Purchase of aerial photographs of the Zeneca-Stauffer site. Joe Robinson, Vice Chair RSSA-CAG, Doug Mosteller, CSV, Dorinda Shipman (Treadwell and Rollo) and Carolyn Graves, RSSA-CAG Exec. Com. are discussing the proper mechanism to purchase aerial photos of the Zeneca-Stauffer RSSA. 

Post 9 August 2007 CAG meeting discussions of the health risks of the Lot 1 RAW.  During the break at the 9 August 2007 meeting Peter Weiner, Dorinda Shipman, Adrienne LaPierre and others presented the CAG's concerns to Michelle King (EKI,) and Doug Mosteller (CSV) regarding the need to consider the health of off site receptors (Harbor Front Tract business employees and other inhabitants) and the impact of remediation on the ecology of animals and plants in the upland regions of the Zeneca Stauffer site. This informal discussion led to further dialog by Adrienne LaPierre (Iris Environmental) with Kimi Klein (DTSC).   

Table 1 Rad Data for Lots 1, 2 and 3 and March '07 LFR letter to DTSC. This table contains important information that should have been reviewed and discussed with us by our former radiation consultant prior to our 13 July 2007 meeting with CSV,  DTSC and Zeneca. Several aspects of the data require close scrutiny including, the small number of samples (34) and sample sites (23), and the paucity of groundwater samples (1) given the approximately 85 acre area of the site.   

New Business:

Document review and oversight of the Technical Support Team. Six documents and areas will be reviewed and reconciled by the Tox Com.
1. Public Health Assessment: Evaluation of Exposure to Contaminants at the University of California Richmond Field Station-Draft for Public Comment. Public comment period ends September 24, 2007 (Steve Linsley, compiler )
2. DTSC Review of Draft Final RI for Lot1 and 2, March17, 2007, B. Cook to D. Mosteller (Sherry Padgett, compiler)
3. DTSC Review of Draft Final RI for Lot3, July 30, 2007, B.Cook to D. Mosteller (Sherry Padgett, compiler)
4. HERD Review of Draft Final RI for Lot 3, April 12, 2007, K. Klein to L.Nakashima (Sherry Padgett, compiler)
5. Chapter 3 MARSSIM Guidance (Carolyn Graves, compiler)
6. Conduct of operations: out of sequence RP and DTSC activities (Joe Robinson, compiler).

The five documents (1-5) and issue (6) listed above require analysis by the Tox Com and response in letter form where necessary to the originating parties.  Documents 1-4 need to be reconciled against earlier Tox Com critiques and with the exception of document 1, memoranda issued by the Technical Support Team. The purpose of the reconciliation of documents is to ensure that CAG concerns are consistently included and/or argued for. The process also achieves oversight of the work of the Technical Support Team, a Tox Com responsibility. 

Old business:

Cal EPA responded to M. Esposito's request for citations to publications that report on the the actual health protective effects of Cal EPA DTSC remediation protocols, covenants and deed restricitions. Cal EPA DTSC did not have any citations to offer but suggested the names of libraries that might contain journals reporting the requested information. Michael is awaiting a reply from B. Cook who was asked for the same information at a previous CAG meeting.

Technical Support Commitee members Dorinda Shipman (Treadwell and Rollo), M. Esposito, and Sherry Pagett have conducted interviews with prospective radiological consultants. With the assistance of Peter Weiner, the team contacted William Kennedy and Steve Bump, of Dade Moeller and Associates, a highly respected radiation consulting group that has participated in National Institute of Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH) historical reconstructions of radiation exposures of uranium metal workers. Following a lengthy interview with Kennedy and Bump, and further conversations with the principals by Dorinda Shipman, the Tech Support Team wishes to engage Dade Moeller and Associates as their radiological consultant.  Michael Esposito introduced a motion that the Toxics Committee approve the selection of Dade Moeller and Associates: the motion was seconded by Joe Robinson, and passed unanimously. 
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